
    

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 4 
November 21, 2016 

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, November 21, 2016 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Porter 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to 
attend all meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a 
Public Hearing is scheduled. 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
PRESENTATIONS / COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for Recognition” form.  
Forms are on the table at the back of the room. Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. Recommended 
time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. November 7, 2016 City Council Minutes 

 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which 
are routine in nature and for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any 
item placed on the Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any council member prior to the 
time a vote is taken.  All remaining items of the Consent Agenda are then disposed of in a single motion 
to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will then poll 
the council members individually by a roll call vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the 
consent Agenda is then voted on individually by roll call vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more 
detailed staff reports, letters, resolutions, and other supporting materials.  A citizen wishing to review 
these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. Third Avenue, Stayton, or the Stayton Public 
Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting. If you require special accommodations contact Deputy City Recorder Alissa 
Angelo at (503) 769-3425.



    

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
November 21, 2016 

PUBLIC HEARING 
Proposed Code Amendment Regarding Permitted Limited Manufactured Uses in the 
Downtown Mixed Use Zoning Districts 
a. Commencement of Public Hearing 
b. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
c. Questions from Council 
d. Proponents’ Testimony 
e. Opponents’ Testimony 
f. General Testimony 
g. Questions from Public 
h. Questions from Council 
i. Staff Summary 
j. Close of Hearing 
k. Council Deliberation 
l. Council Decision on Ordinance No. 1001, Amending SMC Title 17, Regarding Manufacturing 

Uses in Downtown Mixed Use Zones 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Putney and Lambert Property Acquisitions       Action 
a. Staff Report – Lance Ludwick 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Florence Street Dog Park         Action 
a. Staff Report – Lance Ludwick 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS 
Finance Department Report – Cindy Chauran & Elizabeth Baldwin  Informational 
a. October 2016 Monthly Finance Department Report 
 
Police Chief’s Report – Chief Rich Sebens      Informational 
a. October 2016 Statistical Report 
 
Public Works Director’s Report – Lance Ludwick     Informational 
a. October 2016 Operating Report 

 
Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman   Informational 
a. October 2016 Activities Report 
 
Library Director’s Report – Janna Moser      Informational 
a. October 2016 Activities 



    

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
November 21, 2016 

PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR      
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR      
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – Monday, December 5, 2016 
a. Certification of Election Results 
b. Wave Franchise Agreement Extension 
c. SCTC Franchise Agreement Extension 

 
 

ADJOURN



    

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
November 21, 2016 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 
NOVEMBER 2016 

Monday November 21 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Thursday November 24 

CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF THANKSGIVING HOLIDAY 
Friday November 25 

Monday November 28 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
DECEMBER 2016 

Monday December 5 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday December 6 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday December 9 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday December 13 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday December 19 City Council Cancelled  

Wednesday December 21 Library Board Cancelled  
Friday December 23 CITY OFFICES CLOSE AT NOON IN OBSERVANCE OF CHRISTMAS HOLIDAY 

Monday December 26 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF CHRISTMAS HOLIDAY 
JANUARY 2017 

Monday January 2 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF NEW YEARS DAY HOLIDAY 
Tuesday January 3 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday January 3 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday January 10 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday January 13 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café  

Monday January 16 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. DAY 
Tuesday January 17 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday January 18 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday January 30 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

FEBRUARY 2017 
Monday February 6 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday February 7 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday February 10 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café  

Tuesday February 14 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Wednesday February 15 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday February 20 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF PRESIDENTS’ DAY 
Tuesday February 21 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday February 27 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

MARCH 2017 
Monday March 6 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday March 7 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday March 10 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café  

Tuesday March 14 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Wednesday March 15 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Tuesday March 20 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday March 27 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 1 of 3 
November 7, 2016 

City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Action Minutes 

November 7, 2016 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:00 P.M.     Time End:  7:55 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Priscilla Glidewell (excused) Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
Councilor Ralph Lewis Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Jennifer Niegel Rich Sebens, Police Chief 
Councilor Brian Quigley Andy Parks, Finance Consultant (excused) 
Councilor Joe Usselman (excused) Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
 Janna Moser, Library Director 

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc. 

 
None. 
None. 

Presentations / Comments from the Public 
a. Introduction of Police K9 Dallas by Lt. Charlie Button 

 
 
 
 

b. Stayton Family Memorial Pool Year End Update by Billie 
Maurer 

 
 

c. City of Stayton Website by Alissa Angelo 

 
Lt. Button introduced Police K9 Dallas, who is a 
retired drug dog. Alyssa Sunghera, a student at 
Stayton High School shared how Dallas has helped 
her. 
  
Ms. Maurer provided the Council with an updated 
budget and attendance record. She also gave a 
brief update on pool activities and projects. 
 
Ms. Angelo provided an update on the City 
website. 

Consent Agenda 
a. October 17, 2016 City Council Minutes 

 
Motion from Councilor Niegel, seconded by 
Councilor Lewis, to accept the consent agenda. 
Motion passed 3:0. 

Public Hearing 
Residential Rental Property Maintenance Code 
a. Staff Report 

 
b. Commencement of Public Hearing 
c. Questions from the Council 

 
d. Proponents’ Testimony 

 
 

 
 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed the staff report included 
in the Council packet. 
Mayor Porter opened the hearing at 7:21 p.m. 
None. 
 
Keith and Leanne Troutman (1125 Wyatt): Spoke in 
favor of the proposed code.  
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 2 of 3 
November 7, 2016 

e. Opponents’ Testimony 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

f. General Testimony 
g. Questions from the Public 

 
h. Questions from the Council  

 
 
 

i. Staff Summary 
 
 

j. Close of Hearing 
 

k. Council Deliberation 
 
 
 

l. Council Decision on Ordinance No. 1000, Enacting the Stayton 
Rental Housing Code 

Gregory Ellison (20356 Ferry Road, Stayton): 
Manages rental properties in Stayton. He spoke in 
opposition of the proposed code.  
 
Jim Crowther (Sublimity, OR): Owns rental 
properties in Stayton. He spoke in opposition of 
the proposed code.  
 
Tom Youmans (5576 James Way, Aumsville): Owns 
rental properties in Stayton. Mr. Youmans 
opposed the proposed code. 
 
Judy Mohney (2110 E. Pine Street, Stayton): Ms. 
Mohney inquired about an ordinance officer. She 
feels there needs to be a balance to protect 
landlords and tenants and City is going in the right 
direction. 
 
Valerie Bell (Vancouver, WA): Owns rental 
properties in Stayton and is opposed to the 
proposed code. She feels it is redundant to what is 
already available for tenants. 
 
Doug Mulvahill (39778 N. Ruby Loop, Scio OR):  Mr. 
Mulvahill owns rental properties in Stayton. He is 
opposed to the proposed code. 
 
Jeff Crowther (325 Crest Street, Sublimity): Owns 
rental property in Stayton. He opposes the 
proposed code and inquired about certain 
proposed standards. 
 
None. 
None. 
 
The Council and staff briefly recapped how and 
why the Council had reached this point with the 
proposed code.  
 
Mr. Fleishman offered a brief summary of the 
proposed code. 
 
Mayor Porter closed the hearing at 8:19 p.m. 
 
Discussion of notification process for the public 
hearing. Mr. Fleishman explained the notification 
process for this hearing. 
 
Motion from Councilor Lewis, seconded by 
Councilor Niegel, to approve Ordinance No. 1000 
as presented. Motion passed 3:0. 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 3 of 3 
November 7, 2016 

Unfinished Business None.  
New Business None.  
Staff / Commission Reports None.  
Presentations / Comments From the Public None. 
Business from the City Administrator Mr. Campbell offered a reminder of election day 

and encouraged everyone to vote.  
Business from the Mayor The Mayor reminded those in attendance of the 

Commissioner’s Breakfast being held on Tuesday 
morning. 

Business from the Council None. 
Future Agenda Items – Monday, November 21, 2016 
a. Public Hearing – Code Amendments 
b. Dog Park 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 21ST DAY OF NOVEMBER 2016, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 
Date:   Attest:   

 Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
       
Date:  Transcribed by:        
   Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 



 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: November 21, 2016 

 SUBJECT: Proposed Code Amendment regarding Permitting Limited 
Manufactured Uses in the Downtown Mixed Use Zoning 
Districts 

  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is a public hearing on legislative amendments to the Land Use 
and Development Code to allow certain manufacturing uses in the Downtown Mixed Use 
Zoning districts.  Following the public hearing, the Council will be requested to consider 
Ordinance 1001 to amend the Code. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Table 17.16.070.1 in the Land Use and Development Code spells out the permitted uses in each 
of the zoning districts.  The table currently does not permit any manufacturing uses in the 
Downtown Mixed Use zones except for printing and related support activities. 

In the past several years, the City has received a few inquiries about possible small scale 
manufacturing in the downtown area. 

The Planning Commission was approached at its August meeting about the possibility allowing 
limited manufacturing uses in the downtown mixed use zones.  The Commission at that time 
expressed a willingness to amend the Code to accommodate that type of development. 

Staff prepared some ideas for the Planning Commission to review at its September meeting and 
the Planning Commission proceeded with the public hearing process. 

ANALYSIS 

Table 17.16.070.1 lists 17 different broad categories of manufacturing activities, based on the 
North American Industrial Classification System.  The amendment proposes that eight of these 
categories would continue to be prohibited in the downtown area, based on either the impact 
of the manufacturing activity or the usual size or scale of the facilities.  Certain subcategories of 
woods products manufacturing would continue to be prohibited (saw mills and plywood mills 
for example) for the same reasons. 



 

For those manufacturing activities that are proposed to be permitted, the amendment 
establishes a size limitation of 8,000 square feet, a requirement that 15% of the floor area be 
dedicated to retail sales/showroom, and that the retail sales space be directly accessed from 
the street.  Currently the Code limits printing and related support activities to no more than 
10,000 square feet in the downtown zones.  The amendment would apply the same 8,000-
squre foot limitation as to other manufacturing uses. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning Commission has recommended approval, as indicated in the attached order. 

The staff also recommends approval as reflected in the draft of Ordinance 1001 that is included 
in the packet.   

There may be testimony at the public hearing that requires the draft ordinance be modified to 
reflect that testimony. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1001 

Move to approve Ordinance No 1001 as presented. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote 
shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the vote is unanimous, Ordinance No. 1001 is 
enacted and will be presented to the Mayor for his approval. 

If the vote is not unanimous, Ordinance No. 1001 will be brought before the Council for a 
second consideration at the December 5, 2016 meeting. 

2. Approve the Ordinance with modifications  

Move to approve Ordinance No. 1001 with the following changes … and direct staff to 
incorporate these changes into the Ordinance before the Ordinance is presented to the City 
Council for a second consideration. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote 
shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the first consideration is approved, Ordinance 
No. 1001 will be brought before the Council for a second consideration at its December 5, 
2016 meeting. 

3. Return the Ordinance to Staff for further refinement 

Move to direct staff to modify Ordinance No. 1001 with the following changes … and 
present the Ordinance to the City Council for further discussion and consideration at the 
December 5 meeting. 

4. Retain the Code unchanged  

No motion is necessary. 



 

Ordinance No. 1001 Amending SMC Title 17 Provisions Regarding Manufacturing Uses in the Downtown Mixed 
Use Zones 

ORDINANCE NO. 1001 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE (SMC) TITLE 
17, REGARDING MANUFACTURING USES IN DOWNTOWN MIXED USE 

ZONES 
 
WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 197 requires municipalities to adopt and 
implement a comprehensive land use planning program in accordance with statewide planning 
goals established by the Legislature and the Oregon Land Conservation and Development 
Commission; 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton has adopted Title 17 of the Stayton Municipal Code as the Land 
Use and Development Code; 

WHEREAS, Stayton Municipal Code Title 17, Chapter 20, Section 17.16.070 controls the uses 
in individual zones within the City and currently permits printing and related support activities as 
the only manufacturing use in the downtown mixed use zones; 

WHEREAS, small-scale manufacturing uses can be beneficial in the vitality of the downtown 
area; 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is appropriate to allow small-scale 
manufacturing uses in the downtown mixed use zones provided there is a retail component to the 
use; 

WHEREAS, the Stayton Planning Commission has initiated the process for amending the Land 
Use and Development Code and following a public hearing, has recommended that the Stayton 
City Council enact proposed amendments; and 

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council, following a public hearing, does find that the 
amendments proposed by the Planning Commission are appropriate. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Stayton ordains: 

Section 1.  SMC Title 17, Chapter 16 amended.  Stayton Municipal Code, Title 17, Chapter 16 
is hereby amended by changing Table 17.16.070.1 to list Food Manufacturing, Beverage 
Manufacturing, Textile Mills & Textile Product Mills, Apparel & Leather Manufacturing, 
Fabricated Metal Product Manufacturing, Furniture & Related Product Manufacturing and 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing as permitted uses following site plan review in the Central Core 
Mixed Use, Downtown Commercial Mixed Use, and Downtown Residential Mixed Use zones, 
with footnote 16 applying to these uses, limiting their size to 8,000 square feet of gross floor area 
and requiring that a minimum of 15% of their floor area must be for retail sales of products to the 
public accessible directly from the street. 

Section 2.  SMC Title 17, Chapter 16 amended.  Stayton Municipal Code, Title 17, Chapter 16 
is hereby amended by changing Table 17.16.070.1 to list Wood Products Manufacturing as a 
permitted use following site plan review in the Central Core Mixed Use, Downtown Commercial 
Mixed Use, and Downtown Residential Mixed Use zones, with footnote 17 applying to these 
uses to prohibit sawmills and wood preservation, veneer, plywood and engineered wood product 



 

Ordinance No. 1001 Amending SMC Title 17 Provisions Regarding Manufacturing Uses in the Downtown Mixed 
Use Zones 

manufacturing, wood container and pallet manufacturing and manufactured home 
manufacturing. 

Section 3.  SMC Title 17, Chapter 16 amended.  Stayton Municipal Code, Title 17, Chapter 16 
is hereby amended by changing footnote 8 in Table 17.16.070.1 as it applies to printing and 
related support activities to reduce the permitted floor area of these uses from 10,000 square feet 
to 8,000 square feet. 

Section 4.  A portion of Table 17.16.070.1 is attached hereto and designated as Exhibit A. and 
illustrates the changes to the table as described in Sections 1 through 3 above.   

Section 5.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 30 days after adoption by 
the Stayton City Council and the Mayor’s signing. 

Section 6.  A copy of this Ordinance shall be furnished to the State of Oregon, Department of 
Land Conservation and Development forthwith. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 21st day of November, 2016.  

CITY OF STAYTON 

Signed: ____________, 2016 BY: _______________________________ 
 Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

Signed: ____________, 2016 ATTEST: _______________________________ 
 Keith D. Campbell, 
 City Administrator 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 _______________________________ 
 David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 
 



Exhibit A, Proposed Amendment to allow “Limited Manufacturing” in Downtown Mixed Use Zones 
 

Additions are underlined; Deletions are crossed out 
 

  LD MD HD DMD CR CG CP CCMU DCM DRMU ID I IL IA P 
 Manufacturing 

76 Food Manufacturing (except for 
animal slaughtering and processing 
and seafood preparation) 

    S S S S16 S16 S16  S S C/S7  

77 Beverage Manufacturing       S S16 S16 S16  S S   
78 Textile Mills & Textile Product Mills       C/S S16 S16 S16   C/S   
79 Apparel & Leather Manufacturing       S S16 S16 S16  S S   

79a Wood Products Manufacturing       C/S S16,17 S16,17 S16,17   C/S   
80 Paper Mills & Paperboard Mills       S      S   
81 Converted Paper Product 

Manufacturing 
      S      S   

82 Printing & Related Support Activities     S8 S8 S8 S8 S8 S8  S S   
83 Chemical, Plastics, Rubber Products, 

& Nonmetallic Mineral Products 
Manufacturing 

            C/S   

84 Primary Metal Manufacturing             C/S   
85 Fabricated Metal Product 

Manufacturing 
      S S16 S16 S16  S S   

86 Machinery Manufacturing            S     S S     
87 Computer & Electronic Product 

Manufacturing 
           S     S S     

88 Electrical Equipment, Appliance & 
Component Manufacturing 

           S     S S     

89 Transportation Equipment 
Manufacturing 

           S     S S     

90 Furniture & Related Product 
Manufacturing 

           S S16 S16  S16   S S     

91 Miscellaneous Manufacturing            S S16  S16 S16   S S     
Notes to Table 17.16.070.1 

7 Fruit and Vegetable Canning, Pickling, Freezing, and Drying only 
8 Quick printing or under 10,0008,000 square feet gross floor area 
16 Limited to 8,000 square feet gross floor area; a minimum of 15% of floor area must be for retail sales of products to the public accessible directly from the street 
17 Not including Sawmills and Wood Preservation; Veneer, Plywood, and Engineered Wood Product Manufacturing; Wood Container and Pallet Manufacturing; or 

Manufactured Home Manufacturing  
 

 



 
Putney Property Acquisition  Page 1 of 2  
November 21, 2016 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Lance S. Ludwick; Director of Public Works 
 
DATE:   November 21, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Putney and Lambert Property Acquisition 
  
     
ISSUE   

Should the City move forward with the acquisition and use of the Putney and Lambert 
properties? 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The City of Stayton is under contract to purchase a 13.71 acre parcel of land located at 1103 
Shaff Road. The property is part of tax lot 00300, as shown on Marion County tax map 09 01W 
04 D. The tax lot is shown to be 26.72 acres. The tax lot is being partitioned into two (2) parcels. 
The City will own the north parcel, as shown on the draft of the Partition Plat attached to this 
Memo. Hayden Homes has the south Parcel under contract and is planning a 50 lot residential 
subdivision. This Property is known as the Lambert Property.  
 
The City of Stayton also is also under contract to purchase a 23.05 acre tax lot located at 2800 
Kindle Way SE, Stayton Oregon, also shown as tax lot 00200 on Marion County tax map 09 01 
04D and Marion County tax map 09 01 04A. This Property is known as the Putney property.  Tax 
maps showing the property are attached to this Memorandum. The Putney property is situated 
just north of the Lambert property.  
 
The Lambert and Putney properties are being purchased for two definitive purposes. The City 
will design and construct a regional detention facility and a parks and recreation complex.  The 
Lambert Property and a portion of the Putney property will contain a 10-acre foot regional 
detention facility. This detention facility will reroute storm water that currently flows to the 
Salem ditch west of town and direct flows north to Mill Creek. This will reduce the flows in the 
Salem Ditch in an effort to curb flooding.  
 
Staff envisions the majority of the Putney property to be developed into a Parks and Recreation 
Complex. The City of Stayton Parks Master Plan identifies a need for baseball fields and soccer 
fields. The new park complex will have both and it will have room for a new skate park, a full 



 
Putney Property Acquisition  Page 2 of 2  
November 21, 2016 

court basketball court, a dog park, and picnic areas. There will also be trails throughout the park 
which will tie into the trail system north of the Stayton Middle School.  
 
The City is in the process of obtaining the services of a Landscape Architect to create a Master 
Plan for the Park. The Master Plan will aid staff with the obtaining grants and other funding to 
develop the land into a state of the art Parks and Recreation complex.  
 
Staff has discussed the purchase of both properties in executive session. These items come 
forward for formal approval of the Governing Body.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

Funds to purchase the Lambert and Putney Properties will come from a portion of the $1.5 
million in State Lottery Funds granted to the City by the State of Oregon in 2013.  
 
MOTION(S) 

The City Council is presented with the following options: 
 

1) Motion to approve the proposal to allow staff to move forward with the purchase of the 
Lambert and Putney Properties, as presented. 

2) Take no action on the proposal and direct staff to cancel the contract for purchase. 
 
 
 
 
 



^̂

<Ò

Ð

!

!

Ð

<Ò R!

N0
 18

W
 14

45

NOTE: REMAINDER OF THISPARCEL ON MAP 09 1W 04A NOTE: REMAINDER OF THISPARCEL ON MAP 09 1W 04A

N0
 18

W
 14

45

MILL

200
100
61.82 AC

56
.50

 C
H 

 37
29

 M
/L

64
.00

665.38

64
.00

CREEK
300
26.72 AC

30
29

-02
85

18
65

12
10

-03
18

18
65

95
3-0

44
4

11.15 CH 735.90 70.48 584.101534-0323
1534-0324

CR 9004
53

32

5233

34

3535GOLF
73

OA
KM

ON
T  

  L
AN

E

25

25 40

KIN
DL

E  
WA

Y
KIN

DL
E  

 W
AY

29.7

KIN
DL

E  
WA

Y  
SE

40

40 40

GOSHEN    RD

29.7
JUNCO    ST30

'

30
'

60'

45'

CA
RD

IN
AL

   A
VE

60'

ORIOLE    ST60
'

60
'

45'

GOSHEN
RD

30
' JUNCO    ST

60' 60'

NI
GH

TH
AW

K  
 AV

E

PH
EA

SA
NT

   A
VE

60' 60'

60
'

ORIOLE    ST

R = 80 HUMMINGBIRD LANE HUMMINGBIRD60

LANE

60

60'

GO
LD

FIN
CH

 AV
E

AV
E

60

DRIVE
MEADOWLARK60

QUAIL   RUN

PARK

RU
N

60
' EAGLE   STREET

60
' PARTRIDGE  COURT R=45'

45'

R =
 80

CA
RD

IN
AL

 AV
E

60

MEADOWLARK

60

60DR

45'

60
'

EAGLE   STREET 60
'

30'

40

40 25SHAFF

39 ROAD 5040 39 MR 85 5039

60

WESTFALL R=50 R=50

50

PLACE

DR
IVE

WI
LD

IN
G 

PL

WE
ST

MI
NS

TE
R 

PL

50
50

60 WYATT AVENUE

60

SHAFF ROAD MR 85

40

60

R=45

MELISSA CT 50

R=45 WYATT AVENUE 60

MR 8530

60

AV
EN

UE

KATHY

50 50SHAFF30 ROAD30 MR 85 50 5030

60 60

RO
AD

AV
EN

UE

AV
EN

UE

STREET 6060 KATHY

EV
ER

GR
EE

N

1/4 COR

SE COR
H FOSTER

DLC 45

4 3
9 10

029 00 04 0

029 00 04 0

029 00 04 0

029 00 04 0

029 04 04 0

029 04 04 0

029 04 04 0

029 04 04 0
029 04 04 0

029 04 04 0

029 04 04 0 029 04 04 0

029 04 04 0

SEE MAP
091W04A

SEE MAP
091W03B

SEE MAP
091W04DB

SEE MAP
091W03C

SEE MAP
091W04DC

SEE MAP
091W09AB SEE MAP

091W09AA SEE MAP
091W10BB SEE MAP

091W10BA

04DA

04DD

MARION COUNTY, OREGON
SE1/4 SEC4 T9S R1W W.M.

STAYTONSTAYTON
09 1W 04D09 1W 04D

SCALE   1" = 200'

FOR ADDITIONAL MAPS VISIT OUR WEBSITE AT
www.co.marion.or.us

DISCLAIMER:  THIS MAP WAS PREPARED
FOR ASSESSMENT PURPOSES ONLY

09 1W 04D09 1W 04D
STAYTONSTAYTON

09 1W 04D09 1W 04D

09 1W 04D09 1W 04D

LEGEND
LINE TYPES

SYMBOL TYPES

Section Corner<Ò
1516

21 22
R! DLC Corner
. Road Station
! Survey Monument

Waterline - Non Bndry

Railroad Centerline

Historical Boundary
Easement

DLC Line
Map Boundary

Ð 1/16TH Section Cor.
<Ò 1/4 Section Cor.

Road Right-of-Way
Taxlot Boundary

Railroad Right-of-Way
Private Road ROW
Subdivision/Plat Bndry
Waterline - Taxlot Bndry

NUMBERS
Tax Code Number000 00 00 0

All acres listed are Net Acres, excluding any
portions of the taxlot within public ROWs

Acreage

Tick Marks: If a tick mark is indicated on the end of a line,
then the dimension goes to the tick mark.  This is used
when dimensions extend into public right-of-ways.

0.25 AC

NOTES

200.00
175.00

PLOT DATE: 5/1/2015

CANCELLED NUMBERS
400
401
402
500
600
700
800
900
1000
1100
1200
1201
1300
1301
1302
1303
1400

   
Lambert 
Property

Putney 
Property



N

PARTITION PLAT NO._________

B
URVEYING

ARKER

S

N

Detention Faciltiy

Putney
Property

Lambert Property

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHAFF RD SE (MR 85)

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINDLE WAY SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNCO ST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIOLE ST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEADOWLARK  DR SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAGLE ST SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.231 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.121 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
[225.37'][2]

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHILLIPS ESTATES PHASE 1 (V. H47, P. 8, B.O.T.P.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLARAMBEAU ADDITION TO THE CITY OF STAYTON (V. 40, P. 3,  B.O.T.P.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUAIL RUN MEADOWS PHASE 3 (V. 40, P. 117, B.O.T.P.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND S36°E 0.46'FROM COMPUTED CORNER SET NEW MONUMENT AT CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLARAMBEAU ADDITION NO. 2 (V. 40, P. 13,  B.O.T.P.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' WIDE PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT TO CITY OF STAYTON R. 2458, P. 392, MCDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
INITIAL POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-1/2" BRASS CAP SET IN [4]

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
(45.00') [9]

AutoCAD SHX Text
(29.7') R. 3029,  P. 285, MCDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
(15.30') [8]

AutoCAD SHX Text
(15.30') [7]

AutoCAD SHX Text
(29.7') R. 3029,  P. 285, MCDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINDLE WAY SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRON ROD WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP "LS 815" SET IN [3]

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-1/2" BRASS CAP  SET IN [5]

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" IRON PIPE  SET IN [2]

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND SURVEYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
2687

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGORY L. WILSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
O R E G O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
JULY 19, 1994

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRATION DATE: 6-30-2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARKER SURVEYING 3657 KASHMIR WAY SE SALEM, OR 97317 Ph: 503-588-8800 Email: Info@barkerwilson.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SEC. 4, T. 9 S., R. 1 W., W.M., MARION COUNTY, OREGON MARION COUNTY PARTITION CASE NO. 16-015 NOVEMBER 14, 2016

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:1"=100' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
T9S R1W

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL - SCALE: 1" = 60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MCSR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MCDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
(   )

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
[   ]

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND MONUMENT WITHIN 0.2' OF GROUND SURFACE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  FOUND MONUMENT SET IN M.C.S.R. 33731 SET 5/8"X30" IRON ROD WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP FLUSH, STAMPED "WILSON PLS 2687"  RECORD PER REFERENCE SURVEY NOTED  RECORD AND MEASURED PER REFERENCE SURVEY NOTED MARION COUNTY SURVEY RECORDS  MARION COUNTY DEED RECORDS  REEL  PAGE VOLUME BOOK OF TOWN PLATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCE SURVEYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
[1]	MCSR 33731 MCSR 33731 [2] 	MCSR 20185 MCSR 20185 [3] 	CLARAMBEAU ADDITION CLARAMBEAU ADDITION TO THE CITY OF  SILVERTON  (V. 40, P. 3, B.O.T.P.) [4]	MCSR 33677 MCSR 33677 [5]	MCSR 36708 MCSR 36708 [6]	MCSR 18155 MCSR 18155 [7]	PHILLIPS ESTATES - PHILLIPS ESTATES - PHASE 1  (V. H47, P. 8, B.O.T.P.) [8]	PHASE THREE OF  PHASE THREE OF  QUAIL RUN MEADOWS (V. 40, P. 117, B.O.T.P.) [9]	MCSR 32812MCSR 32812

AutoCAD SHX Text
V.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.O.T.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S04

AutoCAD SHX Text
T9S R1W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S09

AutoCAD SHX Text
1995

AutoCAD SHX Text
1507.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1507.52')[1]

Greg Wilson
Typewritten Text
PRELIMINARY



 
City Dog Park  Page 1 of 2  
November 21, 2016 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Lance S. Ludwick P.E., Director of Public Works 
 
DATE:   November 21, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Florence Street Dog Park 
  
     
ISSUE 

Shall the City construct a Dog Park at 180 N. 4th Avenue, located at 4thAvenue and Florence 
Street (present location of the Community Gardens). 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

In a 2015 City sponsored survey of the citizens of Stayton, developing a Dog Park was identified 
as the sixth highest Parks priority for the City. The Parks Board has been trying to find a location 
for a Dog Park for over 10 years. In 2015 the Public Works Department offered up a location for 
a Dog Park in the Neitling Addition to Pioneer Park. The cost of a simply constructed Dog Park 
was estimated to cost approximately $20,000.  
 
This proposal was presented to the Parks Board in October 2015. The Parks Board voted 4-1 in 
approval to advance the proposal to the Planning Commission for review and feedback. In 
November 2015 the proposal was presented to the Planning Commission for review and 
approval. The Planning Commission voted 4-0 in approval of the proposal. The City allocated 
$25,000 for the Dog Park in the 2016-2017 Budget Proposal. In the 2016-2017 Budget, staff had 
recommended a $25,000 budget item for a dog park.  In May 2016, the Budget Committee had 
concerns about allocation of resources specifically for a dog park, so the Budget Committee 
moved the $25,000 from the Dog Park line item into the Parks Development Fund for future 
development of the park system.  The proposed Florence Street Dog Park would be partially 
funded from the $25,000 allocation in the Parks Development Fund. 
 
Soon after the Budget Committee approved the Budget, there was effort by community 
members to find a new location for a Dog Park.  The members focused on City owned property 
for the new location. The property at 180 N. 4th Avenue surfaced as viable location for the Dog 
Park.  The City owned lot is 0.46 acres and is the current location of the Community Garden. 
The first draft of this Dog Park design was to use the south 0.11 acres for a Dog Park. It was 
determined that this area was just not large enough for a Dog Park.  
 



 
City Dog Park  Page 2 of 2  
November 21, 2016 

At the September 2016 Parks Board meeting, the Parks Board discussed temporarily disbanding 
the Community Garden and constructing a Dog Park using the entire 0.46 acres. The Parks 
Board is committed to finding a new location for the Community Garden. They voted 4-0 to 
move the proposal forward to the Planning Commission for review and feedback.   
 
The proposal was presented to the Planning Commission on October 31st, 2016. There were 
concerns from some in attendance about the location and the increased cost of the Dog Park at 
the Florence Street location versus what was originally budgeted. The estimated cost for the 
Florence Street Dog Park is approximately $55,000. It was explained by staff that the increased 
cost is due to improvements to Fourth Avenue and Florence Street.  The Dog Park also has ADA 
accessible sidewalks, sitting areas, benches and a water fountain. The original estimate was 
based on constructing a simple 10,000 square foot park in the Neitling Addition of Pioneer Park.  
Staff explained that there was $25,000 dollars budgeted for Park Development which could be 
used for the Dog Park. The remainder of the costs would need to be raised through community 
efforts and donations. The Planning Commission voted 4-0 to approve the proposal and to 
advance the proposal to the Stayton City Council.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

The fiscal impact to the City for this proposal would be $25,000. The Parks Development Fund 
would be used to help construct the Dog Park. The remainder of the costs for the Dog Park 
would have to be raised from community fundraising efforts. The Dog Park would not be 
constructed until all funds have been raised.  
 
MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options: 

1) Motion to approve the proposal to allow staff to prepare plans for the Dog Park to be 
located at 180 N. 4th Avenue (present location of the Community Gardens) as presented. 

2) Motion to modify the proposal for a dog park to be located at 180 N. 4th Avenue as 
follows                              . 

3) Take no action on the proposal until a suitable location for the Community Garden is 
located and presented to the Council. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Cindy Chauran, Associate Accountant 
   Elizabeth Baldwin, Utility Billing Clerk 
 
DATE:   November 21, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Monthly Finance Department Report 
  
 
 
Departmental Activity 
 October 2016 September 2016 

Utility Billing   

Number of Bills Mailed 2,667 2,665 

Number of Bills Emailed 385 361 

Delinquent Notices Sent Out 508 547 

Courtesy Delinquent Notices Sent to Landlords 153 153 

Notified of Impending Shut-Off & Penalty 129 131 

Customers with Interrupted Services Non-Payment 18 24 

Services Still Disconnected 2 2 

Accounts Payable   

Number of Checks Issued 179 309 

Total Amount of Checks $330,475.95 $214,620.07 
 



 
Monthly Staff Report  Page 1 of 1  
November 21, 2016 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
DATE:   November 21, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Staff Report 
  
     
 
Below you will see the stats for the Police Department for the month of October 
2016. 
  
 October 

2016 
Year to Date 

2016 
October 

2015 
Year to Date 

2015 
     
Police Activity 705 8093 911 8011 
Investigated Incidents 315 3048 360 3358 
Citations/Warning 80/104 1059/1896 66/167 912/1711 
Traffic Accidents 7 105 12 84 
Juvenile Abuse 2 33 5 35 
Arrests 29 587 36 446 
Ordinance Complaints 29 231 NA NA 
Reserve Volunteer Hrs. 292 2747 386.43 3719.14 
Citizen Volunteer Hrs. 59 545 NA NA 
Peer Court Referrals: 0 18 2 44 

     
   









 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Kelli Stevens, Administrative Assistant 
 
DATE:   November 21st, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Works Monthly Operating Report for October 2016 
      
KEY ACTIVITIES STATUS 
 
•  WWTP Facility Effluent flows: 66.01 million gallons were treated during October. The highest 

flow was 3.90 million gallons on October 18th and the lowest flow was 0.91 
million gallons on October 2nd. The average flow was 3.12 million gallons. Total 
rainfall for October was 13.64 inches.  

 
• WTP  Highest production day was 4,681,000 gallons on October 4th, 2016. 
 
• Water System Replaced 11 meters. Repair to meter on E Santiam. Repair to leaking Fire 

Hydrant on Lupine. 
 

• Streets   Leaf season has begun and so has some heavy rain showers. Crews have been 
busy keeping grates cleaned off. Swept 332 curb miles and removed 
approximately 482 cubic yards of material. 
 

 Parks  Volunteers: Community Service - 0 hours, Volunteer – 0 hours. 
    Life skills High School Students – 0 hours. Total = 0 hours. 
    Parks Board Volunteer Hours – 3 hours total –6 Volunteers. 
• Building Permits   

            Permit Type Issued SDC’s Paid 
New Single Family Dwelling 1 $11,934.00 
Residential Building Addition/Alter/Other   
Commercial Building Addition/Alter/Other 1  
Electrical 2  
Mechanical    
Plumbing 2  

TOTAL 6 $11,934.00 
One (1) Residential SDC = $10,883.00 + $707.00 for Mill Creek SDC + Storm 
Water SDC $1919.00 or $2752.00 

 
Public Works Monthly Operating Report  Page 1 
November 21st, 2016 



 

 

 

CITY OF STAYTON 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Henry A Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: November 21, 2016 

 SUBJECT: Report of Activities for October, 2016 

  

Continued to work with Friends of Old Town Stayton 

Planning Commission meeting reviewed one development proposal; worked on Code 
Amendments 

Notified previous applicants for housing rehabilitation funds of availability of funds.  Assisted 
one homeowner with a preapplication. 

Attended regional tourism marketing committee meeting 

Working with Public Works Department staff, improvements to the Geographic Information 
System continued 

 



 
Monthly Library Report  Page 1 of 1  
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Janna Moser - Library Director 
 
DATE:   November 21, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  October Library report 
  
 
 
In October we started our 2016-2017 Oregon Author series. We hosted Wayne Harrison, the 
author of The Spark and Drive. He was very generous with his time and very well received. We 
were also notified that we received a grant from the Marion Cultural Development Corporation 
to help fund the author series.  
 
Book Bob’s and Random Readers, our children’s book clubs, resumed in October. The Book 
Bob’s read The Boxcar Children by Gertrude Chandler Warner & the Random Readers read 
Hidden by Helen Frost. Our adult book club, Tea Time for Booklover’s, read 2 A.M. At The Cat’s 
Pajamas by Marie-Helene Bertino. 
 
The Friends of the Library held their Book Sale October 6-8. They raised over $4000. This is the 
most they have made at a sale in the last five years. Their next sale will be in January.  
 
We held a successful Humans vs. Zombies event for our teens. It was an after-hours tag game. 
The teens played several versions of the game and had a wonderful time.   
 
Upcoming events to mark on your calendars: 

• Coloring for Creativity & Comfort December 1st at 5:30pm 
• Oregon Author Visit – Ron Miner December 8th at 7pm 
• Teens: Gingerbread Zombies (& other easy treats) December 16th at 3:30pm 
• Tea Time for Booklovers December 28th  at 5:30pm 
• Card Making Extravaganza! December 30th at 12pm  

 



TOTAL CHECKOUTS 11,971 11,124 9,957 10,001 43,053 125,970

Self check out 3,997 3,916 3,119 3,066 14,098 42,637

Library2Go (ebooks +) 782 825 747 798 3,152 8,893

Non-resident cards             $465.00 $112.00 $200.00 $70.00 $847.00 $6,996.00

Fines: overdue & lost books $834.93 $591.09 $659.68 $617.02 $2,702.72 -$12,478.54

Room fees                        $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 $250.00 $4,135.50

TOTAL $3,799.72 -$1,347.04

In-Person, by phone and computer 
help

480 508 568 540 2,096 5,395

NEW PATRON CARDS 97 67 63 54 281 1,051

INTERNET USE 1,035 1,137 933 925 4,030 13,230

Children & adults at storytime 678 181 358 370 1,587 5,618

Teens 55 0 6 15 76 326

Adults 13 16 9 17 55 619

Outreach 17 300 218 671 1,206 6,953

TOTAL 2,924 13,516

MEETING ROOM ATTENDANCE 27 65 97 287 476 5,889

PATRON VISITS 8,006 7,102 5,675 6,751 27,534 80,146

VOLUNTEER HOURS 212 260 188 178 838 2,770

2016-2017 Monthly Library  Statistics

July August Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb.

OTHER CIRCULATION SERVICES

INCOME RECEIVED

REFERENCE QUESTIONS

PROGRAM ATTENDANCE

March April May June 2016-17 YTD 2015-16 FY


	CITY OF STAYTON
	M E M O R A N D U M
	FROM:  Kelli Stevens, Administrative Assistant



